
Table of Contents

 
Agenda 2
Minutes

May 21, 2014 6
Payroll

Payroll/Overtime 9
Warrants

Accounts Payable 12
Resolution Accepting the Goldenrod Lift Station Improvements
Project

Staff Report - Goldenrod LS Acceptance 30
Surplus Sale of Equipment and Material

Staff Report - Surplus Sale 32
Participation in a Joint Law Enforcement Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) to use State Grant Funds for Front-Line
Law Enforcement Activities

Staff Report - Law Enforcement MOU 34
Resolution Ratifying the North Central Fire Protection District’s
Ordinance No. 2014-01 Adopting the California Fire Code

Staff Report - North Central Fire Protection 39
Public Hearing on Proposed Utility Rates for Fiscal Year
2014/2015

Staff Report - Utility Rates 108
Resolution Approving the Final Negative Declaration
(SCH#2014041062) for the Vineland Avenue Widening Project

Staff Report-Vineland Negative Declaration 126

1



AGENDA 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL  

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
Wednesday, June 4, 2014 

6:30 PM  
 
 

AGENDA PACKET AVAILABLE FOR  
REVIEW 72 HOURS PRIOR TO  

THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING AT  
THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE AND  

ON THE CITY WEBSITE 
ITEMS RECEIVED AT THE 

MEETING WILL BE AVAILABLE  
FOR REVIEW AT THE CITY  

CLERK’S OFFICE  
Gary Yep – Mayor 
Doug Wilcox – Mayor Pro Tem 
Raj Dhaliwal – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

ALL MEETING ATTENDEES ARE ADVISED THAT ALL PAGERS, CELLULAR TELEPHONES AND ANY OTHER 
COMMUNICATION DEVICES SHOULD BE POWERED OFF UPON ENTERING THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 

AS THESE DEVICES INTERFERE WITH OUR AUDIO EQUIPMENT. 
 

OPENING CEREMONIES 
 

• Welcome – Mayor Gary Yep 
• Call to Order 
• Roll Call 
• Invocation 

At this time the Council wishes to provide anyone an opportunity to give a brief invocation or 
inspirational thought. In accordance with law, we would request this opportunity not be used to 
recruit converts, to advance anyone, or to disparage any other faith or belief. If no one steps 
forward, we will observe a moment of silence so that we may all focus our thoughts on how best 
to serve our community. 

 

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk  
 

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS 
 

To accommodate members of the public or convenience in the order of presentation, items on 
the agenda may not be presented or acted upon in the order listed. 

 

1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS 
 

None 
 

REQUEST TO ADDRESS COUNCIL 
 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for members of the public to address the Council on items 
of interest that are not on the Agenda and are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 
Council. Speakers shall be limited to three minutes. It is requested that no comments be made 
during this period on items on the Agenda. Members of the public wishing to address the Council 
on items on the Agenda should notify the Mayor when that Agenda item is called, and the 
Mayor will recognize your discussion at that time. It should be noted that the Council is 
prohibited by law from taking any action on matters discussed that are not on the Agenda. 
Speakers are asked to please use the microphone, and provide their name and address. 

 

2



2. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

Matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be enacted by one 
motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, 
a member of the audience or a Council Member may request an item be removed from the 
Consent Calendar and it will be considered separately. 

 

A. SUBJECT: Minutes 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: May 21, 2014 
 

B. SUBJECT: Payroll 
 
Payroll Report: May 11, 2014 - May 24, 2014: $118,283.05; Overtime: $4,751.00; 
Standby & FTO: $1,067.24; Comp Time Earned: 12 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Council approve payroll as presented. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Payroll/Overtime 
 

C. SUBJECT: Warrants/Electronic Bank Transfers  
 

Nos. 39150-39320: $329,769.13; Electronic Funds Transfer: $184,270.51 
Excepting:  Kerwest Newspaper: #39193 - $503.00 and #39240 - $20.07 
 Valley Food Center: #39214 - $188.02 and #39296 - $23.27 
  
RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank transfers as 
presented. (Pursuant to Government Code 37208) 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Accounts Payable 
 

Consent Cale ndar  
 
 
 

D. SUBJECT: Resolution Accepting the Goldenrod Lift Station Improvements Project (GH) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council adopt resolution accepting the Goldenrod Lift Station 
Improvements Project and authorize the City Engineer to record the Notice of 
Completion. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Goldenrod LS Acceptance 
 

E. SUBJECT: Surplus Sale of Equipment and Material (KM) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council approve sale of equipment and material to highest bidder. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Surplus Sale 
 

3



F. SUBJECT: Participation in a Joint Law Enforcement Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOU) to use State Grant Funds for Front-Line Law Enforcement Activities (JKB) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council approve second year participation in a Joint Law 
Enforcement MOU between the County of Fresno, all fifteen cities in the County, and 
the California Board of State and Community Corrections (BSCC) and authorize the City 
Manager to sign on behalf of the City. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Law Enforcement MOU 
 

G. SUBJECT: Resolution Ratifying the North Central Fire Protection District’s Ordinance No. 
2014-01 Adopting the California Fire Code (MB) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council approve resolution concurring in the findings of the North 
Central Fire Protection District. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - North Central Fire Protection 
 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

These hearings are scheduled at the time stated and will be heard by the Council as close to 
the time stated as possible. 
 

A. SUBJECT: Public Hearing on Proposed Utility Rates for Fiscal Year 2014/2015 (TJ) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council open the public hearing, receive public testimony, close 
the public hearing, and adopt resolution approving utility rates for fiscal year 2014/2015 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Utility Rates  
 

4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 

A. SUBJECT: Resolution Approving the Final Negative Declaration (SCH#2014041062) for 
the Vineland Avenue Widening Project (GH) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council adopt resolution approving the Final Negative Declaration 
(SCH#2014041062) for the Vineland Avenue Widening Project and authorize staff to file 
the Notice of Determination. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report-Vineland Negative Dec. 
 

5. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 

A. Recycling Update (PG) 
 

6. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS 
 

A. Sebastian Founders Day, June 20, 11:30 a.m., Veteran's Park 

4



 

7. CLOSED SESSION 
 

A. Government Code Section 54957.6 - Conference with Labor Negotiators; Agency 
Designated Representatives: City Manager Luis Patlan; Employee organization: City of 
Kerman Miscellaneous Employees Group, and Kerman Public Safety Employees 
Association. 
 

COUNCIL RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION & REPORT ANY ACTION TAKEN 

 
8. ADJOURNMENT 
 
In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), if you need special assistance to 
participate at this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (559) 846-9380. Notification of 48 hours 
prior to the meeting will enable the City Clerk to make reasonable arrangement to ensure accessibility 
to this meeting. Pursuant to the ADA, the meeting room is accessible to the physically handicapped. 

 

5



MINUTES 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL  

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
Wednesday, May 21, 2014 

6:30 PM  
 

 

Gary Yep – Mayor 
Doug Wilcox – Mayor Pro Tem 
Raj Dhaliwal – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

Present: Mayor Yep (GY), Dhaliwal (RD), Fox (NF), Nijjer (BN) 
Absent: Wilcox (DW) 
Also Present: City Manager/Planning & Development Director Patlan, City Attorney 
Blum, Chief of Police, Public Works Director, Finance Director 

Voting: Yes, 
No, Absent 
(Abstain if 
needed) 

OPENING CEREMONIES  

• Welcome – Mayor Gary Yep  

• Call to Order  6:36 p.m. 

• Roll Call  All present 
except DW 

• Invocation  NF 

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk   Performed 

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS 
 

Approved with the following: 
 

1. Too late for agenda 7.A - Government Code Section 54957.6 - Conference with 
Labor Negotiators 

 

2. Tabled item 2.C to June 4 meeting 

Approved 
RD/BN (4-0-1) 
DW adding 7A 
and tabled 4.C 
to June 4 mtg. 
Approved as 
stated DN/DF 
(4-0-1) DW 

1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS  

A. Introduction and Swearing-In of New Reserve Officer Matt Lopez (JKB) Performed 

REQUEST TO ADDRESS COUNCIL Nathan Alonzo 
Senator 
Vidak’s Office 

2. CONSENT CALENDAR  
Approved 
NF/RD (4-0-1) 
DW A. SUBJECT: Minutes 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented. 
 

B. SUBJECT: Payroll 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve payroll as presented. 

 

 

 

C. SUBJECT: Warrants/Electronic Bank Transfers  
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank 
transfers as presented. (Pursuant to Government Code 37208) 

Tabled until 
June 4 

 

6



 

 

D. SUBJECT: Resolution Approving Agreement Between the City of Kerman and 
the Economic Development Corporation (EDC) Serving Fresno County (LP) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council adopt resolution approving agreement 
between the City of Kerman and the Economic Development Corporation 
(EDC) serving Fresno County and authorize the City Manager to execute the 
agreement. 
 

 

Res 14-29 

E. SUBJECT: Approval of Audit Engagement Letter with Bryant L. Jolley for the 
Fiscal Year 2013/14 (TJ) 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve the audit engagement letter with 
Bryant L. Jolley for the FY 2013/14 audit and authorize the City Manager to 
sign on behalf of the city. 

 

F. SUBJECT: Monthly Investment Report for Month Ending April 30, 2014 (TJ)  

RECOMMENDATION: Council accept the Monthly Investment Report as 
presented. 

 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS None 

4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS  

A. SUBJECT: Letter Requesting Support from Kerman Heat Softball (MR) Not approved 

RECOMMENDATION: Council consider support of Kerman Heat Softball 
Association and direct staff according. 

 

B. SUBJECT: Request for Letter of Support of AB 1693 (Perea) Reliable Tele-Co 
Service for Rural Communities (MR) 

Approved 
NF/RD (4-0-1) 
DW 

RECOMMENDATION: Council consider a letter of support for AB 1693 
Reliable Tele-Co Service for Rural Communities 

 

C. SUBJECT: Request for Letter of Support of AB 1717 (Perea) Funding Local 
Emergency Services (MR) 

Approved 
NF/RD (4-0-1) 
DW 

RECOMMENDATION: Council consider a letter of support for AB 1717 
Funding for Local Emergency Services. 

 

D. SUBJECT: Request for Letter of Support of AB 2672 (Perea) Increasing Access 
to Affordable Heating and Energy for Disadvantaged Communities (MR) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council consider a letter of support for AB 2672 
Increasing Access to Affordable Heating and Energy for Disadvantaged 
Communities. 
 

Council 
requested  
additional 
information 
prior to 
approval 
 

7



 

 

 
 

E. SUBJECT: City of Fresno Request to Amend Measure C Expenditure Plan (LP) Council gave 
direction to 
CM 

RECOMMENDATION: Council to provide input and direction to Mayor Yep 
regarding the City of Fresno’s request to amend the Measure C Expenditure 
Plan to provide additional funding for street maintenance projects. 

 

5. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS  

6. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS   

8. CLOSED SESSION  7:45 p.m. 

A. Government Code Section 54957.6 - Conference with Labor Negotiators; 
Agency Designated Representatives: City Manager Luis Patlan; Employee 
organization: City of Kerman Miscellaneous Employees Group, and Kerman 
Public Safety Employees Association. 

Instructions to 
negotiator. 

COUNCIL RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION & REPORT ANY ACTION TAKEN 9:15 p.m. 

10. ADJOURNMENT 9:16 p.m. 

 
MINUTES CERTIFICATION 

 
I,   MARCI REYES, City Clerk for the City of Kerman, do hereby declare under penalty of perjury that the 

above Minutes are a true depiction of all actions taken at the City Council meeting held on the first date above 
written at Kerman City Hall, 850 S. Madera Ave, Kerman, CA. 

 
         Date: May 22, 2014 
 
         ____________________ 
         Marci Reyes 
         City Clerk 

 

 

8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



    
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM 
Gary Yep Doug Wilcox 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER      
Raj Dhaliwal Nathan Fox                     Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: PUBLIC WORKS 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: JUNE 4, 2014 

To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Gary D. Horn, City Engineer 
Subject: Final Acceptance: Goldenrod Lift Station Improvements Project 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council adopt the Resolution accepting the Goldenrod Lift Station Improvements Project and authorize the City 
Engineer to record the Notice of Completion. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 
The Contractor, Dawson-Mauldin Construction, Inc. has completed the work required for the Goldenrod Lift Station 
Improvements Project. The project replaced the existing submersible sewage pumps at the Goldenrod Lift Station 
due to issues with clogging of the pumps. The City Public Works Inspector has inspected the improvements required 
by the project and all of the improvements have been completed. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
None 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
The Goldenrod Sewer Lift Station is located at the Well No. 17 Site on the east side of Goldenrod Avenue, north of 
the Union Pacific Railroad. The lift station was constructed approximately 9 years ago and the pumps installed in the 
lift station have had recurring problems with becoming clogged with rags and other stringy material. Once clogged, 
the pumps had be lifted out of the lift station and cleaned by Public Works maintenance staff. In order to address the 
ongoing issue, the project replaced the existing submersible sewage pumps with pumps similar to those installed 
recently at the Siskiyou Lift Station, which have performed very well in handling the rags and stringy material 
commonly found in the City’s sewage. In addition to the installation of the new pumps, the project included 
installation of new pump guide rails and fittings, discharge piping within the wet well, and electrical work necessary 
to accommodate the new pumps and meet current electrical codes. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
The total project cost was $55,000, including engineering. The City has budgeted $56,000 in Sewer Facilities Funds 
for the project. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
None Required  
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Resolution  

30



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 2 
Goldenrod Lift Station Improvements Final Acceptance 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 14- 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN 
ACCEPTING IMPROVEMENTS AND AUTHORIZING FILING OF THE NOTICE OF COMPLETION 

FOR THE GOLDENROD LIFT STATION IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 
 
 WHEREAS, Dawson-Mauldin Construction, Inc. has completed the work for the Goldenrod Lift Station Improvements 
Project and; 

 WHEREAS, the City Public Works Inspector has inspected the improvements required by the City and all 
improvements required by the City have been completed; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Engineer recommends acceptance of the Goldenrod Lift Station Improvements Project and 
requests Council to authorize the City Engineer to record the Notice of Completion for the project. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN HEREBY ACCEPTS the Goldenrod Lift 
Station Improvements Project and authorizes the City Engineer to record the Notice of Completion. 

 The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on the 4th 
day of June, 2014, and passed at said meeting by the following vote: 

 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

 
The foregoing resolution is hereby approved. 
 
 
                                                                                  
       Gary Yep  

Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
                                                                  
Marci Reyes  
City Clerk 

31



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM 
Gary Yep Doug Wilcox 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER    
Raj Dhaliwal Nathan Fox                     Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: PUBLIC WORKS 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: JUNE 4, 2014 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Ken Moore 
Subject: Surplus Equipment Sale-Round 2 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council approve sale of equipment and material to highest bidder. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
As in the past, the City accumulates surplus equipment and material that we no longer use due to its age and 
working condition. The City began receiving bids on April 17, 2014 with a bid deadline of May 15, 2014. Public 
Notice was advertised on the City’s website, and in the Kerman News. Notice also was posted at City Hall and 
Public Works Department. Any City employee that submitted a bid also submitted a signed disclaimer/waiver. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
This is the second round of surplus equipment / vehicle bidding. After this round, items not sold will be posted for a 
final round (seven days) and sold after approval to the highest bidder. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
Bids were opened on May 16, 2014 at 8:00 AM. Seventeen equipment/vehicle items were advertised for sale, and 
fifteen received bids. A fiberglass pickup bed cover and a non-operable Ford Crown Victoria were advertised with no 
bids received. Total amount for approval is: $1,355. Items sold are listed in Attachment ‘A’. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
No Fiscal Impact 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
None 
 
Attachment: 
 

A. Bid Sheet Totals 
 

 
  

32



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 2 
Surplus Equipment Sale Round 2 
  
 

ATTACHMENT ‘A’ 
 
 

 

33



    
 

   City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM 
Gary Yep Doug Wilcox 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER    
Raj Dhaliwal Nathan Fox                      Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: POLICE 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: JUNE 4, 2014 

 To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Chief Joseph Blohm 
Subject: Second Year Funding of State Law Enforcement Grant 

RECOMMENDATION  
 

Council approve the second year of participation in a Joint Law Enforcement Memorandum of Understating (MOU) 
between the County of Fresno, all fifteen cities in the County, and the California Board of State and Community 
Corrections (BSCC) and authorize the City Manager on behalf of the City.  
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 

The State of California has legislatively identified funding for three years to be used by law enforcement statewide. 
The BSCC voted to distribute the second year funding of $1,168,285 to Fresno County with allocation to be 
determined by the Fresno County Police Chief’s Association. The Fresno County Chief’s Association (FCCA) 
elected to use the money on a new Electronic Filing program and on a Crime Analyst program. 
 
The State identified these funds for a three year (3) period, and continuance of this program is contingent upon 
availability of future year funding, and should funding cease, all parties have the option to continue or discontinue 
their participation in this program. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 

Current economic conditions have resulted in budget reductions to law enforcement statewide. To help mitigate 
these reductions, the state budgeted money in the General Fund to create a new program for local police 
departments. These funds are legislatively identified for a period of three years; however, funding beyond that period 
is uncertain. The California Police Chiefs’ Association (CPCA) will seek an increase in funding in future years for 
sustainability of the program. 
 
BSCC voted to distribute the annual funds in grants based on a formula developed by the CPCA. The formula 
divides the money among California's counties based on a number of factors, including local budget cuts, crime 
trends, and the ability of the local agencies to make effective use of the money.  
 
During the second year funding, Fresno County will receive $1,168,285. One city in each county has been identified 
to be the fiduciary agent for this funding and will allocate the funds based on the collective decision of local law 
enforcement. Members of the Fresno Madera Counties Police Chiefs’ Association and a representative of the 
Fresno County District Attorney’s Office met to discuss the allocation of funds, various community needs, and the 
fiscal oversight of funds. It was agreed the Fresno Police Department would be the fiscal agent on behalf of the 
Association. Continuing discussions among representatives have collectively agreed to the allocation of funds as set 
forth in the attached MOU.  
 
Funding provided by the BSCC is intended for front-line law enforcement. The FCPCA has committed to using funds 
regionally, in partnership with probation and other service providers; drawing upon data, and focusing on high-risk, 

34



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 5 
Addendum No. 1 to MOU Board and State Community Corrections 
  
serious, violent or habitually non-compliant offenders. The FCPCA believes that the greatest benefit from these 
funds will come from leveraged regional use. Some agencies have already committed resources to address crime 
impacts in their regions, specifically since the implementation of public safety realignment. Use of these funds to 
augment those efforts would be considered within the intent of the allocation. The Fresno County Police Chief’s 
Association agreed to use the dollars to fund two primary activities, described as follows: 
 
Electronic Filing 
 
The District Attorney’s Office staff has created a program for the electronic filing of criminal complaint packages     
(e-filing) that would generate savings of staff time and funds for most agencies involved, which would in turn free up 
resources to fight crime. The Chief’s Association agreed to allocate funds to the District Attorney’s Office to 
implement e-filing countywide. Case management and electronic case filing keeps out-of-pocket expenses low, 
gives concurrent access to case files by multiple parties and offers expanded search and reporting capabilities. The 
system also offers the ability to update dockets immediately and make them available to users, to file pleadings 
electronically with the court and to download and print documents directly from the court system. 
 
Countywide Crime Analysts  
 
Six (6) Crime Analysts have been hired to provide systematic analysis for identifying and analyzing patterns and 
trends in crime. The analysts provide information to metro areas as well as to the rural areas. 
 
The new regional analysts serve to efficiently focus resources on the most serious, violent, habitually non-compliant 
persons who pose the greatest risk to communities while providing the structure and administrative support to 
demonstrate outcomes in the subsequent evaluation of efforts. The Chief’s Association allocated funds toward the 
hiring of six (6) Crime Analysts to develop and maintain an active database that are shared between municipalities.  
 
Training funds were also allocated to allow the Crime Analysts to attend extensive training in the collection and 
dissemination of crime analysis and will provide systematic analysis for identifying and analyzing patterns and trends 
in crime and disorder. Information on patterns help law enforcement agencies deploy resources in a more effective 
manner, and assist detectives in identifying and apprehending suspects. Crime analysis plays a critical role in 
devising solutions to crime problems, and formulating crime prevention strategies. Quantitative social science data 
analysis methods are part of the crime analysis process; though qualitative methods such as examining police report 
narratives also play a role. These positions will allow us to effectively implement a regional effort to track and 
monitor career criminals; and help reduce crime and violence that is occurring in our neighborhoods.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
None, these programs are state funded for the first 3 years. At the end of the three year funding period, the City of 
Kerman can elect to continue utilizing the programs for a fee or opt out of the programs. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
None 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Addendum No. 1/with Exhibit 
  

35



City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 5 
Addendum No. 1 to MOU Board and State Community Corrections 
  

 
 

Attachment ‘A’ 

 

36



City Council Staff Report    Page 4 of 5 
Addendum No. 1 to MOU Board and State Community Corrections 
  
 
 
CITY OF KERMAN 
 
By:  ________________________   
 Joseph Blohm, Chief of Police   
 
ATTEST:  
 
Name:       
 
Title:               
 
By: ________________________   
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Attorney for City of Kerman 
 
By:        
 
Name:       
 
Address: 
City of Kerman 
Attn: Chief Joseph Blohm 
Kerman Police Department 
850 S. Madera Avenue 
Kerman, CA 93630 
 
  

37



City Council Staff Report    Page 5 of 5 
Addendum No. 1 to MOU Board and State Community Corrections 
  

Exhibit “A” 
 

EXHIBIT A (revised) Qty Cost Year 1 FY13- 14 Year 2 Fy 14-15 

Fresno County District Attorney 
Total 

Amount $1,019,575.00 $1,168,285.00 

Staff Assistant /salary with fringe  8  40,863.00                315,165.20              339,504.00  
Supervising Office Assistant  1  81,812.00                 81,812.00                84,435.00  
Rental Desk top computer with network 9     1,941.96                 17,477.64                17,494.36  
19" flat screen monitor 9        192.86                  1,735.74                      -   
Voice Over IP phone  9        138.24                  1,244.16                   1,265.41  

O&M for county vehicle  1     7,800.00                  7,800.00                   7,800.00  
Laser Printer 3     5,620.00                 16,860.00                       -   
Kyocera FS C865ODN cost per page black 
and white  1     7,220.00                  7,220.00                   9,569.16  

Kyocera FS C865ODN cost per page color 1     7,112.00                  8,543.36                13,490.40  
Printer LAN charge/connection Fee 
($39.73/mo/device 3        476.76                  1,430.28                   2,404.62  
Printer I-Net Line Charge/network Fee 
($16.18/mo/device 3        194.16                    582.48                   567.73  
File Server (1 TB @ $8.6549/GB) (split drive 
& mirror) 2 $8,862.62                19,063.00                17,725.24  
Paper (case = 10 reams) 300 $34.41                 9,540.00                10,323.00  
Stapler (heavy duty) N/A                      96.45    
Staples/office supplies  26           2.03                     52.78                    52.78  

Total                  488,623.09              504,631.70  
City of Clovis        

Crime Analysts / salary with fringe 1  73,300.00                 73,300.00               93,612.00  
Hard ware and software necessary for data 
collection and sharing, and training 

     
9,000.00                  9,000.00                10,000.00  

Total                   82,300.00               103,612.00  

Fresno City Police Department        
Crime Analysts / salary with fringe 5  73,300.00                366,500.00               365,930.00  
Kerman, Kingsburg supplies and mileage                   9,000.00                 9,000.00  
Hard ware, software, program development, 
training, and operational costs.                  73,176.91                73,746.00  
Regional data sharing and Public Engines 
software                  111,365.30  

Total                  448,676.91               560,041.30  

Total     $ 1,019,600.00   $ 1,168,285.00  
 

38



  
 

City of Kerman 

“Community Comes First” 
  

   

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM 
Gary K. Yep Doug Wilcox 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
Raj Dhaliwal Nathan Fox                     Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: CITY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: JUNE 4, 2014 

 

   
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Mark A. Blum, City Attorney and Luis Patlan, City Manager 
Subject: Resolution ratifying the North Central Fire Protection District’s Ordinance No. 2014-01 adopting the 

California Fire Code 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Council approve the resolution ratifying the North Central Fire Protection District’s Ordinance No. 2014-01 adopting 
the California Fire Code with minor amendments. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
The California Fire Code has been updated, and North Central Fire Protection District has adopted an ordinance 
adopting the Fire Code with minor amendments to tailor the code to our local conditions. The City must ratify, amend 
or deny the ordinance adopted by North Central and take other actions as detailed in the proposed resolution 
attached to this staff report. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The North Central Fire Protection District has adopted an ordinance updating the California Fire Code with minor 
amendments to tailor the code to our local conditions. The proposed modifications primarily concern the high levels of 
heat, long response times in sometimes remote locations, and limited water supplies available in this area. In light of 
these local conditions, North Central has proposed more stringent requirements for fire sprinkler systems to keep 
fires small, and enhanced requirements for exit signage.  
 
The City Council may choose to delegate enforcement of the Fire Code to its building official or to the Fire Chief. The 
City’s building official will need to recognize when the requirements of the Fire Code may be applicable, but day to 
day enforcement of the Fire Code should be delegated to the Fire Chief.  
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES 
 
None. 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
The Council is requested to adopt the attached resolution as required by state statute.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
None required. 
 
Attachments: 
 
 A. Resolutions w/Exhibits 

39



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 2 of 70 
 

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-__ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN, CONCURRING 
 IN THE FINDINGS OF THE NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT WITH 

RESPECT TO MODIFICATIONS OF THE CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE,  
RATIFYING THE ADOPTION OF THE DISTRICT’S ORDINANCE NO. 2014-01, 

AND TAKING ACTIONS RELATED TO THE CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE  
 

 WHEREAS, NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT (the “District”) provides 
the City of Kerman with fire prevention and emergency fire suppression services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to California Health and Safety Code Section 13869.7, the District 
has made express findings concerning the adoption of the updated California Fire Code and 
modifications thereto that are “reasonably necessary because of local climactic, geological or 
topographical conditions” and the District has accordingly adopted the California Fire Code with 
locally suitable modifications and amendments; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Kerman is required to determine whether to ratify, modify or deny 
the ordinance adopted by the District and take certain related actions 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE IT IS HEREBY FOUND, DETERMINED, RESOLVED AND 
ORDERED as follows: 
 

1. The Council hereby concurs with, and adopts as its own, the express findings of North 
Central Fire Protection District that modifications to the California Fire Code are 
reasonably necessary because of local climactic, geological and topographical 
conditions, all as set forth in the District’s Resolution No. 14-01, attached hereto as 
Exhibit A, and incorporated herein by this reference. 

 
2. The Council hereby ratifies North Central Fire Protection District’s Ordinance No. 

2014-01, attached hereto as Exhibit B, and incorporated herein by this reference. The 
District adopted Ordinance No. 2014-01 on April 24, 2014, and said Ordinance shall be 
effective within the City of Kerman from and after the adoption of this Resolution. 

 
3. Notwithstanding the ratification of North Central Fire Protection District’s Ordinance 

No. 2014-01, nothing contained therein shall be construed to override any more 
stringent fire protection requirement imposed by the City of Kerman’s resolutions, 
ordinances or regulations, including, but not limited to, the requirements for fire 
suppression sprinklers imposed by Section 15.04.075 of the Kerman Municipal 
Ordinance. 

 
4. The Council hereby delegates the enforcement of the ordinance to the chief of the fire 

protection district that adopted the ordinance, or his or her authorized representative. 
 
 

40



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 3 of 70 
 

5. The City Clerk is directed to transmit a copy of this Resolution to the District within 15 
days of its adoption. The City Clerk is further directed to file a copy of the findings of 
the district, and any findings of the city, county, or city and county, together with the 
adopted ordinance with the Department of Housing and Community Development, 
Division of Codes and Standards, P.O. Box 1407, Sacramento, CA 95812-1407. 

 
The forgoing resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City 

Council of the City of Kerman held on the 4th day of June, 2014, by the following vote to wit: 
 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

 
The forgoing resolution is hereby approved. 

 
 
              
         ________________________ 
         Gary Yep 
         Mayor 
ATTEST: 
        
 
 
_____________________ 
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 
 
  

41



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 4 of 70 
 

Exhibit ‘A’ 

42



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 5 of 70 
 

43



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 6 of 70 
 

44



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 7 of 70 
 

45



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 8 of 70 
 

46



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 9 of 70 
 

47



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 10 of 70 
 

48



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 11 of 70 
 

49



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 12 of 70 
 

50



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 13 of 70 
 

51



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 14 of 70 
 

52



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 15 of 70 
 

53



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 16 of 70 
 

54



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 17 of 70 
 

55



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 18 of 70 
 

56



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 19 of 70 
 

57



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 20 of 70 
 

58



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 21 of 70 
 

59



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 22 of 70 
 

60



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 23 of 70 
 

61



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 24 of 70 
 

62



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 25 of 70 
 

63



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 26 of 70 
 

64



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 27 of 70 
 

65



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 28 of 70 
 

66



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 29 of 70 
 

67



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 30 of 70 
 

68



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 31 of 70 
 

69



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 32 of 70 
 

70



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 33 of 70 
 

71



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 34 of 70 
 

72



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 35 of 70 
 

73



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 36 of 70 
 

74



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 37 of 70 
 

75



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 38 of 70 
 

 

76



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 39 of 70 
 

Exhibit ‘B’ 

77



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 40 of 70 
 

78



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 41 of 70 
 

79



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 42 of 70 
 

80



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 43 of 70 
 

81



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 44 of 70 
 

82



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 45 of 70 
 

83



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 46 of 70 
 

84



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 47 of 70 
 

85



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 48 of 70 
 

86



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 49 of 70 
 

87



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 50 of 70 
 

88



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 51 of 70 
 

89



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 52 of 70 
 

90



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 53 of 70 
 

91



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 54 of 70 
 

92



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 55 of 70 
 

93



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 56 of 70 
 

94



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 57 of 70 
 

95



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 58 of 70 
 

96



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 59 of 70 
 

97



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 60 of 70 
 

98



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 61 of 70 
 

99



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 62 of 70 
 

100



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 63 of 70 
 

101



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 64 of 70 
 

102



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 65 of 70 
 

103



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 66 of 70 
 

104



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 67 of 70 
 

105



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 68 of 70 
 

106



City Council Staff Report  
Resolution Ratifying North Central Fire Protection District’s Adoption of the CA Fire Code with Local Modifications  Page 69 of 70 
 

 

107



    
 

 

City of Kerman 

“Community Comes First” 
  

   

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM 
Gary K. Yep Doug Wilcox 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER   
Raj Dhaliwal Nathan Fox                     Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: FINANCE DEPARTMENT
STAFF REPORT

CITY COUNCIL MEETING
MEETING DATE: JUNE 4, 2014

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Toni Jones, Finance Director 
Subject: Public Hearing for Proposed Utility Rates for Fiscal Year 2014/15 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Council open the Public Hearing, receive public testimony, close public hearing and adopt resolution approving Utility 
Rates for Fiscal Year 2014/2015. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
On April 2, 2014, staff presented a thorough review of expenses, revenues and reserve levels for the Enterprise 
Funds (Water, Sewer, Solid Waste, Street Sweeping and Storm Drain).  
 
Each year staff reviews the revenue and expenditure projections for the Enterprise Funds in order to determine if 
utility rates need adjustments to cover projected expenditures. The Enterprise Funds include Water, Sewer, Solid 
Waste, Street Sweeping and Storm Drain. These funds are different than the General Fund because the cost of 
operations is paid for by user charges. The City of Kerman owns and operates its own utilities with the exception of 
street sweeping, refuse hauling and collection (Solid Waste), which are contracted with outside firms. 
 
After a thorough review of current and future revenue requirements and reserve levels for the Enterprise Funds, staff 
proposed the following rate increases for fiscal year 2014/15: 
 

• Water      .25 per user/month 
• Sewer  1.00 per user/month 
• Solid Waste   .14 per user/month 
• Street Sweeping  .05 per user/month 
• Storm Drain   .10 per user/month 
Total            $1.54 per user/month 

 
The proposed utility rate adjustments are minor in order to keep up with ongoing operational costs. The proposed 
sewer rate increases is necessary to cover operational expenses and debt service payments for the new Wastewater 
Treatment Plant. Operational expenses on the WWTP for maintenance, supplies and state fees continue to increase 
each year. Furthermore, beginning in fiscal year 2014/15 the full debt service payment will be expensed from the 
Sewer Operation budget. Previously debt service payments were split 50/50 with Sewer Development Impact Fee 

108



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 18 
Proposed Utility Rates for FY 2014/15 
 
(DIF) funds, but due to the continuing decline in construction, funds to cover 50% of the debt servce are not available 
in the DIF fund. Therefore the entire debt service payment on the new Wastewater Treatment Plant will be paid from 
operations in 2014/2015. 
 
Other minor adjustments are recommended to cover additional operating expenses within the funds including a small 
increase to cover increased tipping fees and inflation based on the CIP as stipulated in the contract with Mid Valley 
Disposal. Overall, the proposed rate changes represent a 2.03% on non-metered accounts and 2.10% on metered 
accounts or an additional $1.54 per month for utility customers. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES 
 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The Proposed Utility Rates Summary (Attachment ‘A’), Proposed Enterprise Funds Revenue summary (Attachment 
‘B’), Enterprise Funds Revenue and Expenditure Summary (Attachment ‘C’), along with preliminary Enterprise Fund 
Operating Budgets (Attachment ‘D’) are included with this report. Staff prepares these preliminary expenditure and 
revenue projections in order to determine the rate adjustments to be included in the fiscal year 2014/15 budget. Staff 
contacted nine other municipalities to compare their current utility rates and is including the survey as Attachment ‘E’. 
The City of Kerman continues to have one of the lowest utility rates compared to the other cities in the survey. 
 
The proposed rate adjustment would result in a total increase of $1.54 or 2.03% (from $75.86 per month to $77.40) 
for non-metered customers and $1.54 or 2.10% (from $73.48 per month to $75.02) for metered customers that use 
16,000 gallons of water per month (rates vary with water usage). Incremental adjustments to the utility rates each 
year are recommended in order to keep up with increases in operational costs and to avoid large rate adjustments in 
any given year. Staff is continuing to work on the fiscal year 2014/15 budget and the numbers will be revised as 
needed prior to the scheduled public hearing and adoption of the final budget on June 18th. 
 
This public hearing is the next step in the process for the Council to authorize the proposed utility rate increases 
pursuant to Prop 218. The City Clerk published public hearing notices on April 16th and May 21st in the Kerman News; 
Finance mailed letters to all property owners and utility customers on April 18th; and the proposed rates have been 
published in the May and June Utility Newsletters. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
Open the Public Hearing to receive public testimony on the proposed Utility Rates for Fiscal Year 2014/2015. The 
City Clerk received one letter of opposition and is included as Attachment F. 
 
Attachments: 
 A. Proposed Utility Rates 
 B. Enterprise Funds Revenue Summary 
 C. Enterprise Funds Revenue and Expenditure Summary 
 D. Enterprise Funds Operating Budgets 
 E. Utility Rate Survey 
 F. Letter of Opposition 
 G. Resolution w/Exhibit 

 

109



City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 18 
Proposed Utility Rates for FY 2014/15 
 

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

 

FY 2013/14 RATES PER MONTH
JULY 2014 

PROPOSED 
RATES

% 
CHANGE

Non-metered (Flat Rate) Customers
$28.78 WATER 0.25 $29.03  0.9%

$29.11 SEWER 1.00 $30.11  3.4%
 

$15.72  SOLID WASTE 0.14 $15.86  0.9%
$0.85 STREET SWEEPING 0.05 $0.90 5.9%

$16.57 TOTAL  SOLID  WASTE 0.19 $16.76 1.1%

$1.40 STORM DRAIN 0.10 $1.50 7.1%

$75.86 TOTAL 1.54 $77.40 2.03%

Total increase $1.54 per month (2.03%) or $18.48 annually for flat rate customers.

Metered Customers (Depends on Usage)
$26.40 WATER 0.25 $26.65  0.9%

Estimated usage @ 16,000 gallons x .7956/1,000 gallons + 3/4" meter $14.17

$29.11 SEWER 1.00 $30.11  3.4%
 

$15.72  SOLID WASTE 0.14 $15.86  0.9%
$0.85 STREET SWEEPING 0.05 $0.90 5.9%

$16.57 TOTAL  SOLID  WASTE 0.19 $16.76 1.1%

$1.40 STORM DRAIN 0.10 $1.50 7.1%

$73.48 TOTAL 1.54 $75.02 2.10%

Total increase $1.54 per month (2.10%) or $18.48 annually for average metered customers.

 NOTE:  Actual water bills for metered customers will vary monthly and between customers, based on usage. 

CITY OF KERMAN

PROPOSED UTILITY RATES - FY 2014/15

 $ CHANGE  
PROPOSED

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014

110



City Council Staff Report    Page 4 of 18 
Proposed Utility Rates for FY 2014/15 
 

Attachment ‘B’ 
 

 
 
 
  

Description Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014 Year-End 2014-2015

WATER FUND 
User Charges 1,513,738 1,531,152 1,550,400 1,550,000 1,560,500
Interest Earnings 17,694 16,038 10,000 12,000 10,000
Penalties 25,665 31,240 24,000 27,000 23,000
Meters 4,550 1,950 4,000 10,000 4,000
Miscellaneous 1,282 780 0 565 0

1,562,929 1,581,159 1,588,400 1,599,565 1,597,500

SEWER FUND 
User Charges 1,096,868 1,232,774 1,324,620 1,335,000 1,377,000
Septic Dumping Fee 0 12,005 30,000 25,000 25,000
Del Norte Sewer Trunk 0 802 0 500 500
Interest Earnings 16,323 7,914 6,000 6,000 5,000
Property Rental 19,716 19,745 19,716 25,028 25,000
Penalties 20,937 25,144 0 0 0
Recycled Concrete 15 0 0 0 0
Miscellaneous (PG&E Refund in 11/12) 35,862 0 0 0 0

1,189,721 1,298,383 1,380,336 1,391,528 1,432,500

SOLID WASTE FUND 
Solid Waste Collection 945,454 993,543 1,016,072 1,020,000 1,025,880
Interest Earnings 3,539 3,216 2,500 2,500 2,000
Penalties 20,937 19,811 21,000 19,000 17,000
Waste Bin Charges 154 559 600 100 600
Grant 10,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 0
Street Sweeping 40,713 41,064 41,000 40,000 42,100

1,020,798 1,063,192 1,086,172 1,086,600 1,087,580

STORM DRAINAGE FUND 
User Charges 65,037 65,373 65,300 65,000 69,200
Interest Earnings 84 224 0 250 200
Sale of Dirt 875 16,500 7,500 265 0

65,997 82,097 72,800 65,515 69,400

TOTAL ENTERPRISE FUND REVENUES 3,839,445 4,024,832 4,127,708 4,143,208 4,186,980

Fiscal Year 2014 - 2015
Enterprise Funds' Revenue Summary

111



City Council Staff Report    Page 5 of 18 
Proposed Utility Rates for FY 2014/15 
 

Attachment ‘C’ 
 

 
 

  

2013/14
 Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget % of

Activity Description 2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014 Year- End 2014-2015 Rev's

WATER FUND (41.0)
Total Water Fund Revenues 1,562,929 1,581,159 1,588,400 1,599,565 1,597,500

5005 Water Administration & Accounting 413,531      408,217             413,108             399,630             404,388             
5006 Water - Debt Service 203,875      203,520             165,000             165,000             165,000             
4011 Water Operations 804,248      815,571             921,921             880,624             924,154             

Total Water Fund Operations 1,421,653   1,427,308          1,500,029          1,445,254          1,493,542          

Revenue in Excess of Expenditures 141,276      153,851             88,371               154,311             103,958             7%

SEWER FUND (42.0)
Total Sewer Fund Revenues 1,189,721 1,298,383 1,401,336 1,414,528 1,450,500

5005 Sewer Administration & Accounting 363,097      335,027             365,820             349,494             323,304             
5006 Sewer - Debt Service 67,851        143,718             204,536             202,286             347,907             
4011 Sewer Operations 773,378      829,947             745,574             731,226             771,685             

Total Sewer Fund Operations 1,204,326   1,308,691          1,315,929          1,283,006          1,442,896          

Revenue in Excess of Expenditures (14,605)       (10,308)              85,407               131,522             7,604                 1%

SOLID WASTE (43.0)
Total Solid Waste Fund Revenues 1,020,798 1,063,192 1,086,172 1,086,600 1,087,580

5005 Solid Waste Administration & Accounting 979,131      976,314             1,071,982          1,050,745          1,073,821          
Total Solid Waste Fund Operations 979,131      976,314             1,071,982          1,050,745          1,073,821          

Revenue & Transfer  in Excess of Expenditures 41,666        86,879               14,190               35,855               13,759               1%
 
STORM DRAIN OPERATIONS FUND (47.0)
Total Storm Drain Operation Revenues 65,997 82,097 72,800 65,515 69,400

4011 Storm Drain Maintenance & Operations 65,450        63,330               71,445               70,506               72,734               
Total Storm Drain Fund Operations 65,450        63,330               71,445               70,506               72,734               

Revenue in Excess of Expenditures 546             18,767               1,355                 (4,991)                (3,334)                -5%

TOTAL ENTERPRISE FUND REVENUE 3,839,445   4,024,832          4,148,708          4,166,208          4,204,980          

TOTAL ENTERPRISE FUND EXPENDITURES 3,670,561   3,775,643          3,959,386          3,849,511          4,082,994          
EXCESS (DEFICIT) REVENUE 168,883$    249,189$           189,322$           316,697$           121,986$           3%

SUMMARY OF ENTERPRISE FUND OPERATIONAL BUDGETS

Enterprise Fund Operational Revenues and Expenditures Summary

112



City Council Staff Report    Page 6 of 18 
Proposed Utility Rates for FY 2014/15 
 

Attachment ‘D’ 
 

  

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014 Year- End 2014-2015

PERSONNEL

410 10 00 Salaries 152,256 150,995 156,618 136,000 145,283
410 20 00 Part Time Salaries 2,507 861 0 8,190 1,920
410 30 00 Overtime 77 0 0 267 2,417
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 61,280 58,751 58,043 52,000 53,663

TOTAL PERSONNEL 216,120 210,607 214,661 196,457 203,282

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
510 01 00 Contract Services 4,042 3,759 4,000 4,000 4,000
510 10 00 Professional Services - Audit 4,000 4,300 4,300 4,300 4,300
521 01 00 Office Supplies 3,703 3,667 3,350 3,350 4,500
521 06 00 Uniforms 12 16 10 0 0
521 07 00 Postage 6,000 6,000 6,650 11,000 8,500
540 00 00 Lease Payment (PFA Bond) 42,660 42,998 43,340 43,340 42,802
540 02 00 Equipment Rent - Lease 1,886 1,912 2,000 2,000 2,000
545 00 00 Vehicle - Equipment Rental Internal 3,548 859 511 511 0
546 00 00 Computer - Equipment Rental Internal 4,852 4,852 3,970 5,335 0
550 00 00 Insurance 13,709 13,836 14,631 14,180 17,000
551 02 00 Communications - Cellular Phone 152 0 0 0 0
554 01 00 Travel - Conferences - Meetings 305 621 350 365 350
555 04 00 Taxes & Assessments (F.I.D.) 168 168 700 168 175
555 05 00 Property Taxes - Fresno County 134 137 150 139 150
560 00 00 Internal Service Funds 0 0 0 0 2,898
560 00 00 Administration & Overhead 112,240 114,485 114,485 114,485 114,431

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 197,410 197,610 198,447 203,173 201,106

CAPITAL
600 04 00 Capital Outlay - Machinery & Equipment 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 413,531 408,217 413,108 399,630 404,388

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) (8,720)
Percentage of Change -2.1%

Budget Highlights:

WATER ADMINISTRATION & ACCOUNTING

Overall decrease in budget is due to vacant personnel positions

Internal Service Funds: Vehicle and Computer Equipment combined into Internal Service Funds

41.0 5005

Office Supplies: Additional items needed for software implementation
Postage: Increase due to postage increase and Prop 218 mailings

Annual Bond Lease Payment Breakdown is located in the PFA Budget.

113



City Council Staff Report    Page 7 of 18 
Proposed Utility Rates for FY 2014/15 
 

Attachment ‘D’ (cont’d) 

 
  

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014 Year- End 2014-2015

700 10 00 Debt Service - DWR Principal 36,633 38,079 0 0 0
700 11 00 Debt Service - SRF Loan 165,000 165,000 165,000 165,000 165,000
700 20 00 Debt Service - DWR Interest 2,243 440 0 0 0

TOTAL NOTE PAYABLES 203,875 203,520 165,000 165,000 165,000

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 203,875 203,520 165,000 165,000 165,000

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) 0
Percentage of Change 0.0%

Budget Highlights:
Note Payable - Department of Water Resources (DWR).  The City entered into a contract with the State of California Dept. of
Water Resources in 1993.  The loan was for a construction project under the auspices of the California Safe drinking Water Bond
Law.  Terms of the note called for semi-annual payments of $19,435 each including interest at 3.41%, which began in October of
1994.  The note matured in April of 2013.

State Revolving Fund (SRF) Loan.  The City entered into another contract with the State of California Department of Water
Resources in 2003, which allowed the City to borrow up to approximately $3,300,000 for a major water project and repay the loan
over 20 years without interest.  Terms of the note now call for semi-annual payments of $82,500 beginning January 1, 2011 and 
the final payment to be made on January 1, 2028.

41.0 5006
WATER DEBT SERVICE

114



City Council Staff Report    Page 8 of 18 
Proposed Utility Rates for FY 2014/15 
 

Attachment ‘D’ (cont’d) 
 

 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014 Year- End 2014-2015

PERSONNEL

410 10 00 Salaries 235,974 225,626 261,498 260,000 247,259
410 20 00 Part Time Salaries 0 2,880 8,016 1,800 8,000
410 30 00 Overtime 6,059 5,736 6,000 7,500 7,500
410 35 00 Stand By 7,078 6,580 5,470 7,500 7,136
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 101,748 116,635 126,794 125,000 122,163

TOTAL PERSONNEL 350,859 357,457 407,778 401,800 392,058

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
510 01 00 Contract Services 34,847 23,989 35,000 35,000 50,000
510 10 00 Professional Services 3,558 23,274 20,000 5,000 10,000
510 11 00 Professional Services-GIS Maintenance 0 0 0 0 2,000
510 12 00 Professional Services - Lab Services 6,244 15,307 17,000 17,000 18,000
515 01 00 Utilities 265,964 257,541 275,000 260,000 280,000
521 01 00 Office Supplies 2,649 1,905 1,350 1,350 1,500
521 02 00 Special Supplies 33,587 47,279 45,000 45,000 50,000
521 02 01 Water Meters 5,002 3,237 10,000 5,000 5,000
521 06 00 Uniforms 1,390 1,060 1,283 1,283 1,300
521 07 00 Postage 0 167 1,250 1,250 1,250
540 02 00 Equipment Rental - Lease 1,133 1,193 1,500 1,500 1,500
545 00 00 Vehicle - Equipment Rental Internal 60,842 40,437 45,015 45,015 0
546 00 00 Computer - Equipment Rental Internal 4,576 4,576 5,445 5,550 0
551 01 00 Communications - Telephone 2,284 2,384 2,500 2,500 2,500
551 02 00 Communications - Cellular Phone 1,993 1,329 1,800 1,800 1,800
552 01 00 Public notices/Consumer Conf. Report 628 1,966 2,500 250 250
554 01 00 Training, Travel & Meetings 2,151 2,679 4,000 2,000 2,500
555 01 00 State Fees 12,552 17,791 20,000 10,000 15,000
555 02 00 Upper Kings Basin Water Forum 13,000 12,000 13,000 8,500 8,500
560 00 00 Internal Service Funds 0 0 0 0 60,996

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 452,399 458,114 501,643 447,998 512,096

CAPITAL
600 03 00 Capital Improvements 989 0 0 0 0
600 03 00 Capital Improvements-HVAC at PW Office 0 0 3,500 2,836 0
600 03 00 0 4,000 3,981 0
600 03 05 Capital Improvements-Scada System Upgrade 0 0 5,000 0 7,500
600 03 06 Capital Improvements-HVAC at WWTP 0 0 0 0 12,500
600 03 02 0 0 8,101 0
600 03 03 Capital Improvements-Well 9A Emerg. Repairs 0 0 0 15,909 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 989 0 12,500 30,826 20,000

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 804,248 815,571 921,921 880,624 924,154

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) 2,233
Percentage of Change 0.2%

Budget Highlights:

Capital Improvements-Fire Hydrant Replacement

WATER OPERATIONS
41.0 4011

Capital: Costs for both Scada upgrade and HVAC at WWTP will be expensed 50% water, 50% sewer

Contract Services: Increased to cover 50% preventative maintenance and service contract for electrical at well sites, sewer lifts and water 
generators.
Internal Service Funds: Vehicle and Computer Equipment combined into Internal Service Funds

Capital Improvements-Lift Gate for Hauling Chlorine

115



City Council Staff Report    Page 9 of 18 
Proposed Utility Rates for FY 2014/15 
 

Attachment ‘D’ (cont’d) 
 

 
 

 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014 Year- End 2014-2015

PERSONNEL

410 10 00 Salaries 127,733 106,242 130,251 113,000 102,719
410 20 00 Part Time Salaries 2,261 689 0 4,200 960
410 30 00 Overtime 86 0 0 244 2,007
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 46,979 41,752 47,924 43,000 38,262

TOTAL PERSONNEL 177,059 148,682 178,175 160,444 143,948

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
510 01 00 Contract Services 4,854 4,878 5,500 5,500 5,500
510 10 00 Professional Services - Audit 3,000 3,000 3,000 4,000 3,000
521 01 00 Office Supplies 4,073 4,596 5,000 5,000 5,000
521 06 00 Uniforms 5 7 0 0 0
521 07 00 Postage 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000
540 00 00 Lease Payment (PFA Bond) 34,128 34,399 34,672 34,672 34,241
540 02 00 Equipment Rent - Lease 1,132 1,147 1,200 1,200 1,200
545 00 00 Vehicle - Equipment Rental Internal 3,026 103 93 93 0
546 00 00 Computer - Equipment Rental Internal 4,852 4,852 3,420 4,441 0
550 00 00 Insurance 15,390 15,530 16,423 15,917 18,896
551 01 00 Communications - Telephone 599 525 575 575 575
552 01 00 Public Notice 0 0 500 500 500
554 01 00 Training, Travel & Meetings 90 313 250 150 250
555 04 00 Taxes & Assessments (Fresno Irrig. Dist.) 2,834 2,797 2,800 2,800 2,800
555 05 00 Property Taxes - Fresno County 134 137 150 140 150
560 00 00 Internal Service Funds 0 0 0 0 2,116
560 00 00 Administration & Overhead 106,923 109,062 109,062 109,062 100,127

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 186,038 186,345 187,645 189,050 179,356

CAPITAL
600 04 00 Capital Outlay - Machinery & Equipment 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 363,097 335,027 365,820 349,494 323,304

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) (42,515)
Percentage of Change -11.6%

Budget Highlights:
Overall decrease is due to personnel savings due to staffing changes and decreased Administration & Overhead costs.
Annual Bond Lease Payment Breakdown is located in the PFA Budget.
Internal Service Funds: Vehicle and Computer Equipment combined into Internal Service Funds

42.0 5005
SEWER ADMINISTRATION & ACCOUNTING

116



City Council Staff Report    Page 10 of 18 
Proposed Utility Rates for FY 2014/15 
 

Attachment ‘D’ (cont’d) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014 Year- End 2014-2015

700 16 00 Debt Service - Rev. Bonds Principal 45,000 45,000 45,000 45,000 50,000
700 26 00 Debt Service - Rev. Bonds Interest 21,164 21,164 21,164 21,164 21,164
700 17 00 Debt Service - SRF Loan Principal 114,277 114,277 114,536 114,536 231,362
700 27 00 Debt Service - SRF Loan Interest 18,853 18,853 23,836 23,836 45,381

TOTAL NOTE PAYABLES 199,295 199,295 204,536 204,536 347,907

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 199,295 199,295 204,536 204,536 347,907

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) 143,371
Percentage of Change 70.1%

Budget Highlights:

Revenue Bonds Payable.  In 1981, the City of Kerman issued $1,200,000 of revenue bonds to construct additional sewer facilities.
The City has pledged the revenue derived from these facilities to pay the debt service.  Bond principal payments are made each April.
Interest at 5.0% is paid semi-annually, each April and October.  The outstanding principal balance at June 30, 2013 was $378,285.
The bonds will be paid off in 2021.

SRF Loan - In 2011, the City of Kerman completed the expansion of its Waste Water Treatment Plant.  This project was funded
by $2 million of ARRA Grant money and a State Revolving Fund (SRF) Loan of nearly $5 million.  The first annual loan payment was
paid in September of 2012.  Fund 42 will pay 100% of the loan from operational reserves in fiscal year 2014/15. The outstanding
principal balance at June 30, 2013 was $4,767,170. The loan will be paid off in 2031.

SEWER - DEBT SERVICE
42.0 5006

117



City Council Staff Report    Page 11 of 18 
Proposed Utility Rates for FY 2014/15 
 

Attachment ‘D’ (cont’d) 
 

 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014 Year- End 2014-2015

PERSONNEL

410 10 00 Salaries 254,018 255,240 231,435 230,000 217,689
410 20 00 Part Time Salaries 0 0 0 0 0
410 30 00 Overtime 6,215 6,860 7,200 7,200 8,000
410 35 00 Stand By 8,038 8,314 6,238 6,500 7,377
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 104,170 128,213 110,442 100,000 105,646

TOTAL PERSONNEL 372,442 398,628 355,314 343,700 338,711

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
510 01 00 Contract Services 49,517 41,945 48,500 48,500 74,350
510 10 00 Professional Services 8,544 9,060 13,000 10,000 10,000
510 12 00 Professional Services-Laboratory Testing 11,341 11,949 10,000 8,000 8,000
515 01 00 Utilities 176,077 231,439 160,000 160,000 160,000
515 02 00 Utilities (Lift Station) 8,871 0 4,000 3,000 3,000
521 01 00 Office Supplies & Postage 392 669 400 585 1,000
521 02 00 Special Supplies 45,250 44,563 40,000 47,000 40,000
521 06 00 Uniforms 980 1,088 1,106 1,106 1,100
540 00 00 Equipment Rent - Lease 1,132 1,193 1,500 1,500 1,500
545 00 00 Vehicle - Equipment Rental Internal 55,051 45,561 43,046 43,046 0
546 00 00 Computer - Equipment Rental Internal 6,417 6,417 6,150 6,250 0
550 00 00 Insurance 8,545 8,612 9,107 8,827 10,479
551 01 00 Communications - Telephone 3,338 3,457 3,750 3,750 3,750
551 02 00 Communications - Cellular Phone 1,693 961 1,100 1,100 1,100
554 01 00 Training, Travel & Meetings 1,493 3,261 5,000 2,500 2,500
555 01 00 Dues, Subscriptions & State Fees 21,305 21,141 24,000 30,000 30,000
560 00 00 Internal Service Funds 0 0 0 0 56,195

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 399,947 431,319 370,659 375,164 402,974

CAPITAL
600 03 00 Capital Outlay 989 0 0 0 0
600 03 00 Capital Outlay-Sludge Analyzer 0 0 2,000 0 0
600 03 00 Capital Outlay-High Pressure Weed Sprayer 0 0 2,600 0 0
600 03 05 Capital Outlay-Scada System Upgrade 0 0 5,000 0 7,500
600 03 00 Capital Outlay-Dump Trailer 0 0 10,000 0 0
600 03 01 Capital Outlay-Grinder 0 0 0 12,362 0
600 03 06 Capital Outlay-HVAC System at WWTP 0 0 0 0 12,500
600 03 07 Capital Outlay-Goldenrod/CA Sewer Lift Station 0 0 0 0 6,000
600 03 08 Capital Outlay-Secondary Meter for Pumping Reclaimed Water 0 0 0 4,000

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 989 0 19,600 12,362 30,000

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 773,378 829,947 745,574 731,226 771,685

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) 26,111
Percentage of Change 3.5%

Internal Service Funds: Vehicle and Computer Equipment combined into Internal Service Funds

SEWER COLLECTION & OPERATIONS
42.0 4011

Contract Services: Increased to cover 50% preventative maintenance and service contract for electrical @ wells, sewer lifts and generators 
and annual cleaning of Biolac Air Diffusers at $14,850.

Budget Highlights:

Capital: Costs for both Scada upgrade and HVAC at WWTP will be expensed 50% water, 50% sewer

118



City Council Staff Report    Page 12 of 18 
Proposed Utility Rates for FY 2014/15 
 

Attachment ‘D’ (cont’d) 
 

 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014 Year- End 2014-2015

PERSONNEL

410 10 00 Salaries 100,450 102,909 105,810 98,350 95,995
410 20 00 Part Time Salaries 1,050 172 0 4,060 960
410 30 00 Overtime 198 131 0 326 1,898
410 35 00 Standby Pay 79 99 90 90 95
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 31,812 43,433 41,669 38,500 36,514

TOTAL PERSONNEL 133,588 146,743 147,570 141,326 135,462

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
510 01 00 Contract Services -  (Mid Valley Disposal) 758,308 785,100 812,857 817,000 824,190
510 06 00 Contract Services - (Utility Billing) 833 1,064 1,200 1,500 1,500
510 10 00 Professional Services-Audit & AVR 3,300 3,000 3,000 3,000 4,000
521 01 00 Office Supplies 386 376 700 1,000 1,700
521 02 00 General Supplies - Recycling Grant 4,591 0 18,900 2,450 16,450
521 06 00 Uniforms 12 12 12 20 20
521 07 00 Postage 2,200 2,200 2,200 2,600 2,600
540 00 00 Lease Payment (PFA Bond) 17,064 17,200 17,336 17,336 17,121
540 02 00 Equipment Rent - Lease 754 765 1,000 1,000 1,000
545 00 00 Vehicle - Equipment Rental Internal 2,436 883 854 854 0
546 00 00 Computer - Equipment Rental Internal 2,426 2,426 2,691 3,492 0
550 00 00 Insurance 1,681 1,694 1,792 1,736 5,497
552 01 00 Public Notice 0 0 100 100 100
560 00 00 Internal Service Funds 0 0 0 0 3,891
560 00 00 Administration & Overhead 14,560 14,851 14,851 14,851 14,851
557 80 00 Transfer to Street Fund - St. Sweeping 36,992 0 41,000 41,000 41,000

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 845,543 829,570 918,493 907,939 933,920

CAPITAL
600 03 99 Capital Outlay-New Accounting Software System 0 0 5,920 1,480 4,440

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 0 0 5,920 1,480 4,440

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 979,131 976,314 1,071,982 1,050,745 1,073,821

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) 1,839
Percentage of Change 0.2%

Budget Highlights:

Accounting Software System will not be implemented and paid for until Fiscal Year 2014/15.
Internal Service Funds: Vehicle and Computer Equipment combined into Internal Service Funds

Slight budget decrease due to a savings due to vacant personnel positions

Annual Bond Lease Payment Breakdown is located in the PFA Budget.

General Supplies - Recycling Grant - Current year and prior year unspent funds will be used for playground equipment made with recycled 
products at Katie's Park.

43.0 5005
SOLID WASTE ADMINISTRATION & ACCOUNTING

119



City Council Staff Report    Page 13 of 18 
Proposed Utility Rates for FY 2014/15 
 

Attachment ‘D’ (cont’d) 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014 Year- End 2014-2015

PERSONNEL
410 10 00 Salaries 21,534 21,653 22,718 22,700 23,783
410 20 00 Part Time 0 0 0 700 240
410 30 00 Overtime 1,097 1,054 1,400 1,650 1,650
410 35 00 Stand By 1,098 1,158 963 1,200 1,072
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 10,936 11,583 12,002 12,000 13,893

TOTAL PERSONNEL 34,665 35,448 37,083 38,250 40,638

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
510 01 00 Contract Services 500 0 1,000 1,000 1,500
515 01 00 Utilities 675 699 1,000 1,000 1,000
521 01 00 Office Supplies 85 50 100 100 100
521 02 00 General Supplies 2,087 137 3,000 3,000 3,000
521 06 00 Uniforms 148 108 116 116 120
521 07 00 Postage 750 750 800 800 1,000
540 00 00 Lease Payment (PFA Bond) 1,706 1,720 1,734 1,734 1,712
545 00 00 Vehicle - Equipment Rental Internal 8,319 8,820 7,119 7,119 0
546 00 00 Computer - Equipment Rental Internal 1,144 1,144 310 311 0
550 00 00 Insurance 4,767 4,800 5,076 4,920 4,123
551 02 00 Communications - Cellular Phone 873 851 1,000 1,000 1,000
555 04 00 Taxes & Assessments (Fresno Irrig. Dist.) 1,213 1,213 1,500 1,213 1,225
555 05 00 Property Taxes - Fresno County 134 137 150 139 150
560 00 00 Internal Service Funds 0 0 0 0 8,661
560 01 00 Administration & Overhead 7,307 7,453 7,453 7,453 7,453

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 29,707 27,882 30,358 29,905 31,044

CAPITAL
600 04 00 Capital Outlay-First & Kearney Pump Station Valve Repairs 1,078 0 2,600 2,000 0
600 03 99 Capital Outlay-New Accounting Software System 0 0 1,404 351 1,053

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 1,078 0 4,004 2,351 1,053

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 65,450 63,330 71,445 70,506 72,734

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) 1,289
Percentage of Change 1.8%

Budget Highlights:
Contract Services: Increase for maintenance contract for power supplies at Kearney/First and Lions park pumps.

STORM DRAIN MAINTENANCE & OPERATIONS

Accounting Software System will not be implemented and paid for until Fiscal Year 2014/15.
Internal Service Funds: Vehicle and Computer Equipment combined into Internal Service Funds
Annual Bond Lease Payment Breakdown is located in the PFA Budget.

47.0 4011

120



City Council Staff Report    Page 14 of 18 
Proposed Utility Rates for FY 2014/15 
 

Attachment ‘D’ (cont’d) 
 

 
  

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014 Year- End 2014-2015

PERSONNEL
410 10 00 Salaries 70,765 63,002 63,135 64,500 74,324
410 20 00 Part Time Salaries 7,311 4,760 10,000 10,750 20,000
410 30 00 Overtime 3,011 2,731 3,000 3,535 3,860
410 35 00 Stand By 1,989 1,803 1,913 1,900 1,950
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 42,018 34,153 28,671 32,500 37,910

TOTAL PERSONNEL 125,095 106,448 106,720 113,185 138,044

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
510 01 00 Contract Services 110 0 500 250 500
510 10 00 Professional Services 3,598 4,018 3,500 3,500 3,500
510 11 00 Professional Services-GIS Mapping 0 0 0 0 3,500
515 01 00 Utilities 36,851 30,016 30,000 30,000 30,000
521 02 00 General Supplies 5,749 7,524 5,000 5,000 5,000
521 06 00 Uniforms 362 343 319 319 320
540 00 00 Lease Payment (PFA Bond) 2,560 2,580 2,600 2,600 2,600
545 00 00 Vehicle - Equipment Rental Internal 16,998 15,594 14,329 14,329 0
546 00 00 Computer - Equipment Rental Internal 2,090 2,090 389 466 0
550 00 00 Insurance 2,808 2,824 2,986 2,894 3,436
551 02 00 Communications - Cellular Phone 325 0 500 500 500
555 04 00 Taxes & Assessments (F.I.D.) 63 63 63 63 63
560 00 00 Internal Service Funds 0 0 0 0 23,601
560 00 00 Administration & Overhead 7,800 7,956 7,956 7,956 7,956

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 79,313 73,006 68,142 67,877 80,976

CAPITAL
600 03 00 Capital Outlay-Machinery & Equipment 2,156 0 0 0 0
600 03 36 Capital Outlay-Bucket Truck 0 0 0 0 10,000
600 03 99 Capital Outlay-New Accounting Software System 0 0 3,580 895 2,685

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 2,156 0 3,580 895 2,685

TOTAL DEPARTMENT EXPENDITURES 206,564 179,454 178,442 181,957 221,705

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) 43,263
Percentage of Change 24.2%

Budget Highlights:

Overall increase to budget is due to personnel costs and internal service funds expenditures.

Accounting Software System will not be implemented and paid for until Fiscal Year 2014/15.

LANDSCAPE & LIGHTING
75.0 4011 

Internal Service Funds: Vehicle and Computer Equipment combined into Internal Service Funds
Capital: Bucket Truck (Used) for maintaining street lights and other public works projects. Total cost $27,000 63% vehicles & 37% 
Landscape & Lighting

Revenue:  L & L assessments will generate approximately $209,670 in FY 2014/15

121



City Council Staff Report    Page 15 of 18 
Proposed Utility Rates for FY 2014/15 
 

Attachment ‘E’ 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Kerman 13/14 
Current

Kerman 14/15 
Proposed Lemoore Fowler Chowchilla Mendota Madera Dinuba Kingsburg Sanger Reedley Fresno Clovis

Population 14,225 24,815 5,801 17,925 11,178 62,219 23,082 11,590 24,703 24,965 509,000 101,314

Base Rate 13.67 13.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 9.54 0.00 0.00 24.27 25.51 10.50 0.00

Water 12.73 12.73 19.30 25.96 29.07 32.40 17.80 29.23 29.09 11.36 13.54 4.64 27.06

Sewer 29.11 30.11 27.70 24.78 20.19 31.00 25.49 24.48 24.78 38.88 48.15 25.75 27.39

Sewer Bond 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.55 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Solid Waste 15.72 15.86 23.00 24.34 22.38 15.44 23.22 29.53 41.70 27.57 32.79 32.98 32.64

   St. Sweep 0.85 0.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.74 0.00 2.10 1.43 0.00 6.23 2.25

Storm Drain 1.40 1.50 0.00 0.00 1.63 0.00 2.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

S/D Bond 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total 73.48 75.02 70.00 75.08 75.82 78.84 79.78 83.24 97.67 103.51 119.99 80.10 89.34

Deposit 150.00 150.00 0.00 100.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 75.00 0.00 200.00 360.00 160.00 100.00
renter renter renter renter renter renter renter renter owner renter renter renter renter
owner owner owner owner owner owner owner owner owner owner owner owner

*Survey on Metered Rates based on 16,000 gallons

Municipal Utility Rate Survey
March 2014

122



City Council Staff Report    Page 16 of 18 
Proposed Utility Rates for FY 2014/15 
 

Attachment ‘F’ 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

123



City Council Staff Report    Page 17 of 18 
Proposed Utility Rates for FY 2014/15 
 

Attachment ‘G’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-__ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN 
ESTABLISHING UTILITY RATES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 

 
    WHEREAS, City staff and the City Council have analyzed the revenue and expenditure requirements for all of the City 
Enterprise Funds and determined the appropriate rate changes needed to meet these requirements; and 
 
 WHEREAS, utility rates for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 are proposed as listed in Utility Rate schedule attached as Exhibit 
‘A’; and  
 

WHEREAS, notices of the proposed utility increases were published in The Kerman News on April 16, 2014 and May 
21, 2014, a separate mailing was sent out to all of the Kerman utility customers and property owners on April 18, 2014 and utility 
users have been notified via our May and June 2014 monthly Utility Newsletters. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Kerman that the Council does find, 
determine, resolve, and order as follows:   
           

1. Notice of public hearing on the proposed revision of rates has been published in two separate issues of a local 
newspaper, in a separate mailing to all Kerman utility customers and property owners and in two monthly Utility 
Newsletters, with the first newspaper publication and the separate mailing occurring at least 45 days prior to the public 
hearing; and 
 

2. The public hearing was held pursuant to law; and 
 

3. On the basis of information provided to the City Council at the hearing and in prior reports to the Council, the proposed 
rates as set forth are found to be not discriminatory or excessive, and do not exceed the reasonable cost of providing 
the services and facilities for which the rates are charged; and 
 

4. Rates and charges adopted herein were not calculated on the basis of any parcel map including the assessor’s parcel 
map; and 
 

5. The rates as listed in Exhibit ‘A’ attached hereto are hereby adopted and take effect July 1, 2014. 
                                    

THE FOREGOING was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on the 4th day of 
June, 2014, and passed at said regular meeting by the following vote: 
  
 AYES:  
 NOES:  
 ABSENT:  
 ABSTAIN:  
 ______________________________ 
 Gary Yep 
  Mayor 
ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk  

124



City Council Staff Report    Page 18 of 18 
Proposed Utility Rates for FY 2014/15 
 

Exhibit ‘A’ 
 

 

FY 2013/14 RATES PER MONTH
JULY 2014 

PROPOSED 
RATES

% 
CHANGE

Non-metered (Flat Rate) Customers
$28.78 WATER 0.25 $29.03  0.9%

$29.11 SEWER 1.00 $30.11  3.4%
 

$15.72  SOLID WASTE 0.14 $15.86  0.9%
$0.85 STREET SWEEPING 0.05 $0.90 5.9%

$16.57 TOTAL  SOLID  WASTE 0.19 $16.76 1.1%

$1.40 STORM DRAIN 0.10 $1.50 7.1%

$75.86 TOTAL 1.54 $77.40 2.03%

Total increase $1.54 per month (2.03%) or $18.48 annually for flat rate customers.

Metered Customers (Depends on Usage)
$26.40 WATER 0.25 $26.65  0.9%

Estimated usage @ 16,000 gallons x .7956/1,000 gallons + 3/4" meter $14.17

$29.11 SEWER 1.00 $30.11  3.4%
 

$15.72  SOLID WASTE 0.14 $15.86  0.9%
$0.85 STREET SWEEPING 0.05 $0.90 5.9%

$16.57 TOTAL  SOLID  WASTE 0.19 $16.76 1.1%

$1.40 STORM DRAIN 0.10 $1.50 7.1%

$73.48 TOTAL 1.54 $75.02 2.10%

Total increase $1.54 per month (2.10%) or $18.48 annually for average metered customers.

 NOTE:  Actual water bills for metered customers will vary monthly and between customers, based on usage. 

CITY OF KERMAN

UTILITY RATE SCHEDULE - FY 2014/15

 $ CHANGE  
PROPOSED

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014

125



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM 
Gary Yep Doug Wilcox 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER    
Raj Dhaliwal Nathan Fox           Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: PUBLIC WORKS 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: JUNE 4, 2014 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Gary D. Horn, City Engineer 
Subject: Resolution Approving the Final Negative Declaration (SCH #2014041062) for the Vineland Avenue 

Widening Project 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council adopt resolution approving the Final Negative Declaration (SCH #2014041062) for the Vineland Avenue 
Widening Project and authorize staff to file the Notice of Determination. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
The City has received Federal Regional Surface Transportation Program (RSTP) Lifeline funding for the widening of 
Vineland Avenue from Kearney Boulevard to approximately 700 feet north. In accordance with California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines, a Negative Declaration was prepared for the project and made 
available for review and comments. The final step in the State environmental review process is for the Council to 
approve the Negative Declaration and Staff to file a Notice of Determination.  
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
None 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
Vineland Avenue from Kearney Boulevard to approximately 700 feet north consists of one 12 foot wide travel lane in 
each direction and a 12 foot wide landscaped median. This segment does not include bike lanes, parking lanes, and 
has not been improved with curb and gutter and sidewalk (sidewalk constructed on east side only). In order to 
construct these improvements, and bring the street up to City Standards for a Collector Street, the City allocated 
Federal RSTP Lifeline funds to a project to widen Vineland Avenue. In addition to widening Vineland Avenue, the 
project will include the construction of landscaped curb bulbout islands at the intersection of Vineland Avenue and 
Kearney Boulevard to increase pedestrian safety and also the aesthetic of the intersection. 
 
In order to satisfy the State environmental review process, Staff prepared a Negative Declaration for the Vineland 
Avenue Widening Project. The Negative Declaration concludes that the proposed project would have less than 
significant impacts on the environment. In accordance with CEQA Guidelines, the Negative Declaration was 
submitted to the State Clearinghouse for a thirty (30) day public review period from April 16, 2014 to May 15, 2014. 
In addition, a Notice of Intent (NOI) to adopt a Negative Declaration was filed with the Fresno County Clerk and 
published in the Kerman News on April 23, 2014. A copy of the Negative Declaration is attached to the Resolution 

126



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 5 
Vineland Widening Negative Declaration Approval 
  
as an Exhibit. One comment letter was received during the public review and comment period and it is included in 
the Final Negative Declaration, along with the necessary response. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
The estimated cost for the project is $400,000. The project will be funded with $316,400 in RSTP Lifeline Funds and 
$83,600 in Local Transportation Funds. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
None Required  
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Resolution w/Exhibit 
B. Vicinity Map 

 
 
  

127



City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 5 
Vineland Widening Negative Declaration Approval 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-__ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN 
APPROVING THE NEGATIVE DECLARATION (SCH #2014041062)  

FOR THE VINELAND AVENUE WIDENING PROJECT 
 

WHEREAS, City Staff has prepared an Initial Study to evaluate the potential environmental impacts of the Vineland 
Avenue Widening Project and determined that the proposed Project would have less than significant impacts on the 
environment; and, 

 
WHEREAS, a Negative Declaration attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A’ was prepared in accordance with 

CEQA Guidelines Sections 15070 to 15075; and, 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21092 and CEQA Guidelines Section 
15072, a Notice of Intent to Adopt a Negative Declaration was filed with the Fresno County Clerk and published in the Kerman 
News on April 23, 2014; and, 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15073 the Negative Declaration was submitted to the State of 
California Clearinghouse and Planning Unit (SCH #2014041062) for a 30-day public review period beginning on April 16, 2014 
to May 15, 2014; and, 

 
WHEREAS, at the conclusion of the 30-day public review comment period, the City of Kerman, acting as the lead 

agency, may adopt the Negative Declaration and file a Notice of Determination with the State Clearinghouse and County Clerk 
after considering and addressing comments received from Federal, State, and Local agencies as well as other organizations 
and individuals pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Sections 15073, 15074 and 15075; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council is required to conduct its own independent review and approve the Negative Declaration 

and direct staff to file a Notice of Determination with the State Clearinghouse and County Clerk. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN HEREBY FINDS AS FOLLOWS:  
 

1. The City Council has independently reviewed the Negative Declaration and any comments received during the public 
review process and exercised the Council's independent judgment in considering the Negative Declaration (SCH 
#2014041062); and, 
 

128



City Council Staff Report    Page 4 of 5 
Vineland Widening Negative Declaration Approval 
  

2. The City Council finds, on the basis of the whole record before it that there is no substantial evidence that the project 
will have a significant effect on the environment and the Negative Declaration reflects the Council's independent 
judgment and analysis and the Council hereby approves the Negative Declaration (SCH #2014041062) and designates 
the Planning Department and the Planning Director as the location and custodian of the documents which constitute 
the record of proceedings upon which the Council's decision is based. 

 
3. The City Clerk and other City Staff are hereby authorized and directed to take all necessary actions required under 

CEQA and other applicable law to file a Notice of Determination with the State Clearinghouse and Fresno County 
Clerk's office. 

 
 The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on the 4th 
day of June, 2014, and passed at said meeting by the following vote: 
 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

 
The foregoing resolution is hereby approved. 
 
 
             
       Gary Yep 

Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
                                    
Marci Reyes  
City Clerk 
  

129



City Council Staff Report    Page 5 of 5 
Vineland Widening Negative Declaration Approval 
  

Attachment ‘B’ 
 

 

130


	Agenda
	Minutes
	May 21, 2014

	Payroll
	Payroll/Overtime

	Warrants
	Accounts Payable

	Resolution Accepting the Goldenrod Lift Station Improvements Project
	Staff Report - Goldenrod LS Acceptance

	Surplus Sale of Equipment and Material
	Staff Report - Surplus Sale

	Participation in a Joint Law Enforcement Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) to use State Grant Funds for Front-Line Law Enforcement Activities
	Staff Report - Law Enforcement MOU

	Resolution Ratifying the North Central Fire Protection District’s Ordinance No. 2014-01 Adopting the California Fire Code
	Staff Report - North Central Fire Protection

	Public Hearing on Proposed Utility Rates for Fiscal Year 2014/2015
	Staff Report - Utility Rates 

	Resolution Approving the Final Negative Declaration (SCH#2014041062) for the Vineland Avenue Widening Project
	Staff Report-Vineland Negative Declaration


